
Page 1 of 3 

  

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 28, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0471. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0472.  Roll Call 

16C‐0473.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0474.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0475.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0476.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
16C‐0477. 

 
Public Hearing on the 2016 Property Tax Levy  

4‐10  

 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

 
None. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐22 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
16C‐0478. 

 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of November 14, 
2016  

11‐17  

 
16C‐0479. 

 
Acceptance of September and October 2016 Financial Reports 

‐‐ 

 

Page 1 of 47



Page 2 of 3 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0480. 
 

Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2015‐16 Annual Financial Report by O’Connor 
and Brooks  

 
‐‐ 

 
16C‐0481. 

 
Opening of Bids and Discussion and Possible Action on the Sale of the 
Coatsworth Property 

 
18‐19 

 
16C‐0482. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Well #6 Upgrade 

 
20‐21 

 
 

16C‐0483. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Replacement of the Turner 
Hall Stage Floor 

 
22 

 
16C‐0484. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 93, “Fire Prevention and 
Safety Requirements for Bed And Breakfast Establishments” and Chapter 112, 
“Bed and Breakfast Establishments” of the Code Of Ordinances 

 
23‐28 

 
16C‐0485. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Local Agency Participation Agreement for 
Federal Participation in the Galena River Trail Phase 3 Project 

 
 

 
16C‐0486. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Award of Contract for Galena River Trail 
Phase 3 Project 

 

 
16C‐0487. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Establishing a Travel Reimbursement Policy in 
Accordance with the Local Government Travel Expense Control Act 

 
29‐40 

 
16C‐0488. 

 
First Reading of the 2016 Tax Levy Ordinance—For Taxes to be Collected in 
2017 

 
4‐10 

 
16C‐0489. 

 
Warrants 

41‐47 

16C‐0490.  Alderpersons’ Comments   
16C‐0491.  City Administrator’s Report    
16C‐0492.  Mayor’s Report   
16C‐0493.  Adjournment   

Page 2 of 47



Page 3 of 3 

ALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. December 1  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. December 12  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. December 14  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Tuesday, November 22, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

Page 3 of 47



County, Illinois.

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Administration
Personnel - Salaries 164,674 164,674 0
Personnel - Elected 17,500 500 17,000
Professional Services 507,500 507,500 0
Communications 1,750 1,750 0
Professional Development 3,000 3,000 0
Debt Service 504,761 504,761 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 194,890 194,890 0

Total 1,394,075 1,377,075 17,000

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Finance
Personnel - Salaries 89,805 89,805 0
Insurance Benefits 445,450 132,603 312,847
Maintenance Services 26,500 26,500 0
Professional Services 62,235 62,235 0
Communications 12,400 12,400 0
Professional Development 2,350 2,350 0
Service Charges 9,700 9,700 0
Other Contractual Services 22,000 22,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 7,500 7,500 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 677,940 365,093 312,847

       BE IT ORDAINED BY the Mayor and City Council of the City of Galena, Illinois:

An Ordinance levying taxes for all corporate purposes for the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2017, and ending April 30, 2018.

FOR TAXES TO BE COLLECTED IN 2017
ORDINANCE NO. 0-16-__  2016 TAX LEVY ORDINANCE

       SECTION I: That the amount hereinafter set forth, or so much thereof as may be 
authorized by law, and the same are hereby levied upon all property subject to taxation 
within the municipality as that property is assessed and equalized for the current year and for 
such purposes as: Parks & Recreation; General Corporate; Garbage Disposal; Flood 
Control; Fire Protection: Annual Audit: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund; Social Security; 
Chlorination; Street Lighting; Water Treatment; Street & Bridge; Police Protection; 
Unemployment Insurance; Worker's Compensation; City Tort Judgment & Liability; 
Emergency Services and School Crossing Guards for the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2017, and ending April 30, 2018. 

11/17/2016

Page 1 

Page 4 of 47



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
City Clerk
Personnel - Salaries 9,100 0 9,100
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 4,500 4,500 0
Communications 1,700 1,700 0
Professional Development 2,800 2,800 0
Service Charges 0 0 0
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 800 800 0

Total 18,900 9,800 9,100
 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Zoning
Personnel - Salaries 70,273 44,623 25,650
Personnel - Elected 1,900 1,900 0
Professional Services 1,500 1,500 0
Communications 950 950 0
Professional Development 350 350 0
Maintenance Supplies 500 500 0
Capital Outlays 2,000 2,000 0
Other Expenditures 0 0 0

Total 77,473 51,823 25,650

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Building
Personnel - Salaries 64,391 57,391 7,000
Other Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 12,000 12,000 0
Communications 400 300 0
Professional Development 4,800 4,800 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 2,000 1,500 0

Total 83,591 75,991 7,600

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Engineering
Personnel - Salaries 23,518 23,518 0
Professional Services 10,000 7,000 3,000
Professional Development 2,000 2,000 0
Capital Outlays 1,100 1,100 0

Total 36,618 33,618 3,000
 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Police
Personnel - Salaries 637,183 637,173 10
Other Benefits 9,350 9,350 0
Maintenance Services 7,000 7,000 0
Professional Services 27,300 27,300 0
Communications 9,800 9,800 0
Professional Development 8,200 8,200 0
Service Charges 9,300 9,300 0
Maintenance Supplies 17,200 17,200 0
General Supplies 5,000 5,000 0
Capital Outlays 37,260 37,260 0
Other Expenditures 14,800 14,800 0

Total 782,393 782,383 10

11/17/2016

Page 2 

Page 5 of 47



 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Public Works
Personnel - Salaries 388,602 325,008 63,594
Other Benefits 2,100 2,100 0
Maintenance Services 54,400 54,400 0
Professional Services 8,400 8,400 0
Communications 1,600 1,600 0
Professional Development 500 500 0
Service Charges 28,700 28,700 0
Maintenance Supplies 57,000 57,000 0
General Supplies 28,800 28,800 0
Debt Service 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 270,650 270,650 0

Total 840,752 777,158 63,594
 

General Fund Grand Total 3,911,742 3,472,941 438,801

REF: General Corporate Tax (65ILCS 5/8-3.1) 438,271
REF: Police Protection Tax (65ILCS 5/11-1-3 & 5.1) 10
REF: School Cross Guards Tax (65ILCS 5/11-80-23) 10
REF: Street Lighting Tax (65ILCS 5/11-80-5) 10
REF: Street & Bridges (65ILCS 5/11-81-2) 0

Total Corporate Levy 438,301

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Annual Audit
Annual Audit 30,350 13,350 17,000
Book Reconciliation 560 560 0

Total 30,910 13,910 17,000

REF: Audit Tax (65ILCS 5/8-8-8) 17,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Emergency Services
Ambulance Service 0 0 0
Siren Maintenance 1,000 600 400
Communication 350 243 107
Electric 1,550 1,200 350
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 2,900 2,043 857

REF: Emergency Services & Disaster Operations Tax (65ILCS 5/8-3-16) 857

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Garbage Collection
Personnel Services - Salaries 9,280 9,280 0
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Professional Services 222,940 222,930 10
Communications 4,000 4,000 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 6,250 6,250 0

Total 242,470 242,460 10

10REF: Garbage Disposal Tax
(651LCS 5/11-19-4)

11/17/2016

Page 3 

Page 6 of 47



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Workers’ Compensation
Workers’ Compensation Insurance 96,150 0 91,500

Total 96,150 0 91,500

91,500

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Liability Insurance
Insurance Benefit 0 0 0
City Building & Content 50,100 14,450 35,650
Public Official's Liability 350 50 300
Automobile Insurance 21,100 1,250 19,850
Tort Insurance 71,700 1,700 70,000
Inland Marine 3,700 200 3,500
Boiler & Machinery 3,000 300 2,700
Employee Crime 0 0 0
Employee's Bond 0 0 0
Treasurer's Bond 0 0 0

Total 149,950 17,950 132,000

REF: City Tort Judgment & Liability Insurance Fund (745 ILCS 10/9-107) 132,000

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Parks Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 81,101 81,091 10
Maintenance Services 10,000 10,000 0
Professional Services 2,000 2,000 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 3,500 3,500 0
General Supplies 11,500 11,500 0
Debt Service 53,050 53,050 0
Capital Outlays 1,587,800 1,587,800 0
Other Expenditures 0 0 0

Total 1,748,951 1,748,941 10

REF: Parks Tax (651LCS 5/11-98-1) 21,143

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Social Security
Social Security Tax 136,400 0 136,000

Total 136,400 0 136,000

REF: Social Security Fund (40ILCS 5/21-110 & 110.1) 136,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Flood Control Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 40,975 975 40,000
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 10,500 0 10,500
Professional Services 0 0 0
Communications 0 0 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 3,000 0 3,000
Maintenance Supplies 2,000 0 2,000
General Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 13,500 0 13,500
Other Expenditures 1,000 0 1,000
Total 70,975 975 70,000

REF: Levee Tax (65ILCS 5/11-112-1 & 2 70,000

REF: Workers' Compensation and Occupational Disease (7451LCS 10/9-107)

11/17/2016

Page 4 

Page 7 of 47



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Fire Protection Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 35,400 0 35,400
Insurance Benefits 2,500 0 2,500
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 3,700 0 3,700
Professional Services 3,025 0 3,025
Communications 1,850 0 1,850
Professional Development 8,500 0 8,500
Service Charges 15,700 0 15,700
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 11,250 0 11,250
General Supplies 13,500 250 13,250
Capital Outlays 216,500 -30,449 246,949
Other Expenditures 8,190 0 8,190
Total 320,115 -30,199 350,314

REF: Fire Protection Tax (65ILCS 5/11-71 & 3) 350,314

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Water Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 80,406 80,396 10
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 0 0 0
Communications 2,500 2,500 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 5,000 5,000 0
Other Contractual Services 330,000 330,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 400 400 0
Debt Service 162,100 162,100 0
Capital Outlays 68,000 68,000 0
Other Expenditures 36,380 36,380 0

Total 684,786 684,776 10

REF: Waterworks System Tax (65ILCS 5/11-131-1) 10

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Sewer Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 63,468 63,468 0
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 1,500 1,500 0
Professional Services 30,705 30,695 10
Communications 1,500 1,500 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Other Contractual Services 330,000 330,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 300 300 0
Debt Service 602,145 602,145 0
Capital Outlays 24,000 24,000 0
Other Expenditures 55,475 55,475 0

Total 1,109,093 1,109,083 10

REF: Chlorination of Sewage Tax (65ILCS 5/11-142-3) 10

11/17/2016

Page 5 

Page 8 of 47



 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Pension Benefits 167,250 66,250 101,000
Personal Property Replacement 
Tax (Library) 9,300 9,300 0

Total 176,550 75,550 101,000

REF: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (40 ILCS 5/7-171) 101,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Unemployment Insurance 
Unemployment Payments 11,500 6,500 5,000

Total 11,500 6,500 5,000

Unemployment Compensation Fund (745ILCS 10/9-1-7) 5,000

TAX LEVY SUMMARY AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Corporate Tax 438,271
Police Protection Tax 10
School Cross Guards 10
Street Lighting 10
Street & Bridges Tax 0
Annual Audit Tax 17,000
Emergency Services Tax 857
Garbage Disposal Tax 10
Worker's Compensation Tax 91,500
City Tort Judgment & Liability Insurance 132,000
Parks & Recreation Tax 21,143
Social Security Tax 136,000
Flood Control Tax 70,000
Fire Protection Tax 350,314
Water Treatment Tax 10
Chlorination Tax 10
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 101,000
Unemployment Insurance Tax 5,000

TOTAL TAX LEVY 1,363,146

          SECTION III: That if any section, subdivision or sentence of this ordinance shall for 
any reason be held invalid or to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portion of this ordinance.

SECTION IV: That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption as
provided by law.

          SECTION II: That the amount levied for each object and purpose is placed in a 
separate column under the heading, "Amount Levied," which appears over same being as 
follows, to-wit:

11/17/2016

Page 6 

Page 9 of 47



AYES:   

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   

Terry Renner, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk

Adopted this 12th day of December, 2016 pursuant to a roll call vote by the City Council of
the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

11/17/2016

Page 7 

Page 10 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 14 NOVEMBER 2016 
 
 

16C-0448 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 14 November 2016.  
 
16C-0449 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier and Renner 
 
16C-0450 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0451– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0452 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Destination Marketing Organization (DMO) – A meeting was held last week.  The County 
Board sent back changes.  The DMO signed off on all but two of those changes.  The DMO 
recommended a cap of $18,000 annually for administrative fees to the County.  The County did 
not accept it.  The County wanted a clause to allow cancellation within six months for any reason.  
The DMO was opposed to that.  Other than those two items everything was approved and it is 
being sent back to the County.  The County Board will have it on their agenda Tuesday, 
November 15th.  Depending on that outcome it will come back to the DMO and a solution could 
possibly be made shortly.   
 
Turner Hall Committee – A meeting was held on November 3rd at Turner Hall.  A large part of 
the discussion was the fly loft.  The effuse coating on the outside is not doable.  It will be sealed 
and tuck pointed.  The inside of the fly loft will get spray foam on the ceiling and sides.  The hall 
has 10 new tables and new chair racks.  Everything is looking good.  They will be moving ahead 
with the stage floor.   
 
16C-0453 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Rick Pariser, 113 S. High Street – Pariser noted a few weeks ago the Council had a general 
discussion regarding the Norris Lane interchange.  Nothing was resolved other than attributing 
the lack of the interchange to the financial conditions of Midwest Medical Center.  Shortly after 
that discussion there was a double wreck out there.  Pariser stated he happened to be there and 
observed the aftermath.  He feels there is a clear and present danger.  While he is not blaming 
anyone, he feels someone needs to take responsibility and get this addressed.  The City has an 
agreement with Midwest Medical whereby they agreed to make turn lanes to alleviate problems.  
Pariser recommended the City resurrect this and come up with a time line or plan to get this taken 
care of.   
 
James Wirth, 121 S. High Street – Wirth distributed copies of an email he had sent to the 
Council.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-21 
 
16C-0454 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
OCTOBER 24, 2016 
 
16C-0455 – APPROVAL OF STRAY DOG PICK-UP CONTRACT WITH JO DAVIESS COUNTY 
ANIMAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT FOR DECEMBER 1, 2016-NOVEMBER 30, 2017 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-21 as presented.       
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
           
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
16C-0416– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REPAIR TO RETAINING WALL 
ADJACENT TO 108 S. HIGH STREET 
 
The following quotes were received: 
 

Description of Work Contractor Cost 
   
Reset 8’ x 2’ section of rock wall Ben Wienen Excavating $4,650 
Reset 15’ x 6’ section of rock wall Ben Wienen Excavating $10,815 
Remove and rebuild 28’ section of wall 
(from stairs to end of property) 

Earl Thompson Masonry $15,840 

 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to deny the repairs to the retaining wall adjacent 
to 108 S. High Street, 16C-0416.        
 
Discussion: Bernstein feels it is clear from the information gathered by staff that it isn’t the City’s 
responsibility to repair the wall.  The wall was built by the previous owner and the City has never 
had anything to do with it or maintained it.  The insurance company has denied the claim.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
          
  The motion carried.  
 
 
16C-0440 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO PERMIT VACATION RENTALS IN THE HISTORIC 
DISTRICT 
 
Motion:   Westemeier moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the second reading of an 
Ordinance amending the Zoning Ordinance to permit vacation rentals in the Historic District, 16C-
0440.     
 
Discussion:  Bernstein questioned what the basis was for setting the cap at 20.  Oldenburg 
advised that was an arbitrary number the Board felt would be a good starting point.  
 
Fach questioned if it would be allowed to have two side by side.  Oldenburg explained with regard 
to density they did not set a density formula due to the size of our town and the cap of 20 rentals.  

Page 12 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

While other communities use a density formula, the Board felt a density restriction could limit the 
ability to develop.   
 
Oldenburg advised when an application is received for a special use permit, the surrounding 
property owners within 250 feet will get a letter.  The Board removed the language of renewing 
every five years because the City has the ability to revoke at any time if it becomes a nuisance.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
           
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0457– REPORT FROM AMERICAN WATER ON GALENA WATER AND WASTEWATER 
OPERATIONS 
 
Jeff Saylor reported things have been pretty normal.  Some main breaks, service leaks, blocked 
sewers, etc.   
 
Saylor advised Council would be looking at the possible purchase of a leak detector later on the 
agenda.  Typically, it costs about $3,400 annually to do a survey.  The locator can pin point to find 
the leak easier.  If staff notices a usage increase, they could do a quick survey to find the leak 
and get it repaired faster.  While it is not essential, Saylor feels it will pay for itself over the period 
of the life of the equipment or less.  It is a tool that would be used.   
 
Saylor reported the contract ends July 31st.  The City owed money for maintenance and repair 
and for chemicals.  The electricity was a wash.   
 
16C-0458– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AMENDING CHAPTER 93 AND 
CHAPTER 112 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR LICENSING OF VACATION RENTALS 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve amending Chapter 93 and Chapter 
112 of the Code of Ordinances for licensing of vacation rentals, 16C-0458.   
 
Discussion:  A recommendation was made to remove the effective dates given.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0459– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON HORSE DRAWN CARRIAGE 
LICENSE APPLICATION BY EHRLER RANCH, LLC, 11750 WEST CHETLAIN LANE, 
GALENA 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the request for a Horse Drawn Carriage 
License by Ehrler Ranch, LLC, 11750 Chetlain Lane, Galena, 16C-0459.   
 
Discussion:  Council was happy to see this coming back to town.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 

Page 13 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

16C-0460 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION MINIMUM/MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the first reading and waive the second 
reading of an ordinance authorizing the execution of the Illinois Municipal League Risk 
Management Association Minimum Contribution Agreement.   
 
Discussion:  None.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
16C-0461– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE 
ASSISTANCE AND PARTICIPATION OF THE ILLINOIS EPA FOR ENVIRONMENTAL 
INVESTIGATION OF THE FORMER JO DAVIESS COUNTY SERVICE COMPANY ON SOUTH 
MAIN STREET 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve a Resolution requesting the assistance 
and participation of the Illinois EPA for environmental investigation of the former Jo Daviess 
County Service Company on South Main Street.   
 
Discussion:  The last study was done in 1995.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
16C-0462– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ESTABLISHING THE AMOUNT OF 
THE 2016 TAX LEVY TO BE COLLECTED IN 2017 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to establish the amount of property taxes the City of 
Galena expects to levy in 2016, to be collected in 2017, at $1,363,146, with a rate decrease from 
$1.38 per $100,000 to $1.36.     
 
Discussion:  Kieffer stated while he doesn’t like to raise taxes, the slight increase would fix a 
road or two.  He feels with the rate dropping it can be justified.  Bernstein feels it is a win with in 
that the City will be taking in more money yet the citizens are actually going to pay a little less on 
their real estate tax bill.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  Lincoln 
           
   The motion carried. 
 
16C-0463– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE PURCHASE OF PAY AND 
DISPLAY PARKING TERMINALS 
 
In a memo to Council, Moran recommended purchasing two MacKay Guardian parking machines.  
One to be installed inside the parking kiosk at the lot next to the winery and the other to be 
installed on the Commerce Street frontage of the City Hall lot.  The machines, including 
installation, cost $12,326 each or $24,652 total.  Based on the historical parking revenues from 
the lots, Moran would expect the cost of the units to be fully recouped in less than one year.   
 

Page 14 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the purchase of two new pay and display 
terminals at a cost of $24,652, 16C-0463.   
 
Discussion:  Fach recommended the metal boxes go directly to the bank from the machines for 
counting.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
16C-0464– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON JOINT PURCHASE OF LEAK 
DETECTION EQUIPMENT 
 
In a memo to Council, Moran advised six communities are interested in participating and sharing 
equally in the cost of purchasing a portable leak detection system.  The total cost would be 
$27,140 or $4,523 per community.  The unit would be stored in Galena and checked out as 
needed by each community.  Any repair costs would be split equally among the communities.  
The unit carries a five-year warranty.  Training would be provided for the staff of each community.   
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the joint purchase of leak detection 
equipment in the amount of $4,523 amended to increase the City’s share from $4,523 to $5,428.     
 
Discussion:  Council agreed it was well needed and felt sharing with other towns was a great 
idea.   
 
Lincoln noted Stockton has backed out due to no funds.  He can’t see not helping them out if they 
needed it.  He would at least like to agree to help others if needed.  The increased cost would be 
$5,428.   
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Fach, to amend the motion to increase the City’s share from 
$4,523 to $5,428. 
 
Discussion:  None 
 
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
16C-0465– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CLEAN-UP OF EAST SIDE BULK 
TANK SITE 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the clean-up of the East Side 
Bulk Tank Site.   
 

Page 15 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

Discussion:  Council agreed it would be great to get that area cleaned up and nice to get some 
help to pay for it.  The area will be planted in grass.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
16C-0466 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:    Fach moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the Warrants as presented, 16C-
0466.      
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn, Kieffer 
   
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0467 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Tax Levy – Fach stated passing the tax levy tonight makes him think of properties that are 
surrounded on all sides and are not annexed into the city.  Annexing these properties could 
contribute to the general worth of the city possibly reducing the taxpayer’s obligations.  It is a 
mystery to him why we have at least three properties surrounded on all sides and they have not 
been annexed.   
 
Thank you – Westemeier thanked Matt Oldenburg and his crew for their work on the Air BnB 
ordinance.   
 
Winter Market – Bernstein stated she attended the first Winter Market at Turner Hall.  There 
were lots of vendors.  She encourages all to check it out.  They are held the second Wednesday 
of the month from 4-6.  This is an opportunity to support local vendors and purchase things you 
might not find elsewhere.   
 
16C-0468 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Galena River Trail – Moran advised the bids were opened for the final phase of the Galena River 
Trail.  Low bid was Louie’s Trenching at $1.64 million.  It was a close bid process as the other 
bids were $1.7 and $1.9 million.  Staff will review the numbers and will work with the Department 
of Transportation.  An item should be on the next agenda.   
 
Audit – O’Connor Brooks will present the audit at the November 28th meeting.   
 
16C-0469 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner congratulated the Galena High School girls’ volleyball team for going as far as they 
did.  They represented Galena well! 
 
Mayor Renner thanked Matt Oldenburg for his work on the Air BnB ordinance.   
 
Happy Thanksgiving! 
 
16C-0470 - ADJOURNMENT 

Page 16 of 47



Regular Board Meeting  14 November 2016 
 

 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde, MMC 
City Clerk 

Page 17 of 47



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 22, 2016 

RE:    Coatsworth Sale 
 
 
At the October 11 meeting, you approved an ordinance to advertise the sale of the Coatsworth 
property by public bid.  In accordance with the state statute, the advertisement (attached) was 
published for three consecutive weeks in the Galena Gazette.   Sealed bids are due by 4:30 p.m. on 
Monday, November 28.  Any bids received must be opened during the November 28 city council 
meeting. 
 
After the bids are opened at the meeting, a motion could be made to direct the staff to prepare an 
ordinance to sell the property to the successful bidder.  That ordinance would be presented for 
council consideration at the December 12 meeting and would set forth any conditions of the sale.   
The ordinance requires a ¾ vote, or six votes, for passage.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 
 

   

 

Page 18 of 47



NOTICE OF SALE 
of Property Owned by the City of Galena 

and Invitation to Bid Thereon 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT the City Council of the City of Galena will receive sealed bids for the 
purchase, under the successful bid, of the fee simple interest in the following real property: 
 
Lots 17, 18 and the South 13 feet of Lot 19, between Main and Commerce Streets, fronting 79 
feet on Main Street and extending back to and fronting 79 feet on Commerce Street; situated in 
the City of Galena, County of Jo Daviess, State of Illinois 
 
which property  is  generally  located  at 126  South Main  Street, Galena,  Illinois,  known  as  the 
Coatsworth Building, and is currently devoted to senior apartments and retail. 
 
Bids for the purchase of the aforesaid interest in the above‐described property are hereby invited 
and will be received by the City Attorney at Galena City Hall between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 
4:30 p.m. on November 28, 2016.  Said bid proposals shall be addressed to: 
 

Galena City Council 
City of Galena 
c/o City Attorney 
101 Green Street  
PO Box 310 
Galena, Illinois 61036 

 
and shall bear the legend “PROPOSAL – SALE OF COATSWORTH PROPERTY” and the name and 
address of the bidder.  
 
All bids received will be publicly opened and read aloud at the regular meeting of the Galena City 
Council of the City of Galena at 6:30 p.m. on November 28, 2016.  
 
All bids are subject to outstanding mortgages, leases, liens, taxes, and any other encumbrances 
on the subject property.   
 
A contract may be awarded to the highest bidder whose bid is found to be in the best interests 
of the City of Galena.  The Galena City Council reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to 
waive any informalities or irregularities in the bidding.  The Galena City Council further reserves 
the right to review and study any and all bids and to make a contract award within 30 days after 
the bids have been opened and publicly read.  
 
Copies of the bidding instructions may be obtained at the office of the City Clerk.  
 

Page 19 of 47



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      22 November 2016 
 
RE:       Well #6 Upgrade 
      Approval of Bids 
 
Bids for this project were sent to four contractors, of which three were returned. These are tabulated on the 
attached page and summarized as follows: 
 
  Peerless Service Co ($)  Lyons Well Drilling ($)  Cahoy Group ($) 

Base bid  31,350  55,650  49,274 

Adjusted Base Bid  31,350  56,150  48,207 

 
During the past few years we have noticed the water level in well #6 (Gear Street) has noticeable decreased 
during periods of prolonged pumping. To increase well capacity, we propose increasing the pump depth by 80 
feet and altering the staging on the pump to allow for improved production.  
 
The attached summary indicates there was an arithmetic error in the bid from Lyons Well drilling – the 
corrected sum being $56,150. I discussed the bids with Jeff Saylor and we decided that item 6 – shaft 
alignment was not needed, as this work was completed when the pump was replaced in 2013. Both Peerless 
and Lyons took this change into consideration on their bids but Cahoy Group did not, so we needed to adjust 
their base bid by omitting this item. We believe the best value submittal is from Peerless Service for $31,350 
which is near the estimate of $30,000.  
   
I recommend the city council approves the base bid from Peerless Service Company for the sum of $31,350 to 
upgrade well #6. The budget item for this project contains $25,000. A budget amendment will be issued for 
the difference of $6,350. 

Page 20 of 47



Well #6 Upgrade

Peerless Service Lyons Well Drilling Cahoy Group

Item # Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price $ Amount $ Unit Price $ Amount $ Unit Price $ Amount $

1 Mobilization 1 Sum 500.00         500.00         10,000.00   10,000.00  8,094.00      8,094.00   

2 Well pump removal 1 Sum 6,800.00     6,800.00      7,500.00     7,500.00    7,212.00      7,212.00   

3 Bail oil 1 Hours 450.00         450.00         ‐               ‐              1,418.00      1,418.00   

4 Equipment inspection 1 Sum 500.00         500.00         ‐               ‐              1,667.00      1,667.00   

5 Bowl repair/rebuild ‐ if required by Engineer 1 Sum ‐               ‐               11,400.00   11,400.00  2,420.00      2,420.00   

6 Align 300‐feet of Shaft ‐ if required by engineer 1 Sum ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐              1,067.00      1,067.00   

7 Add 80 feet of oil tube, column pipe and line shaft 1 Sum 5,800.00     5,800.00      17,000.00   17,000.00  6,014.00      6,014.00   

8 Add two intermediate stages to pump unit as detailed 1 Sum 3,800.00     3,800.00      ‐               ‐              5,162.00      5,162.00   

9 Remobilization to jobsite 1 Sum 500.00         500.00         500.00        500.00        2,076.00      2,076.00   

10 Re‐Installation of well pump 1 Sum 9,000.00     9,000.00      9,500.00     9,500.00    10,660.00   10,660.00 

11 Column pipe, line shaft and oil tube reassembly 1 Sum 2,600.00     2,600.00      ‐               ‐              1,200.00      1,200.00   

12 Pump to waste and two bacteriological samples 1 Sum 1,400.00     1,400.00      250.00        250.00        2,284.00      2,284.00   

Total Base Bid 31,350.00    56,150.00  49,274.00 

Adjusted base bid if item 6 ommited 31,350.00    56,150.00  48,207.00 

NOTES:

1 Peerless Service quote did not include quote for item 6 and inlcluded item 5 within item 8

2 Lyons Well Drilling quote included item 8 within item 5. All other items in zero amount were included in base bid.

 There was an arithmetic error in base bid: quoted at $55,650 whereas actual base bid was $56,150.

Page 21 of 47



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Andy Lewis, City Engineer and Janelle Keeffer, Facility Manger 

DATE:    22 November 2016 

RE:    Turner Hall Stage Floor Improvements 
Approval of Quotes 

As part of the ongoing improvements to Turner Hall, requests for quotes were sent to four 
contractors to replace the stage floor and complete associated work. Two quotes were received 
detailed as follows: 

Contractor  Amount $ 

White Construction  9,600 

Faulkner Construction  9,800 

The proposed work involves removal and replacement of the existing stage floor surface, repair 
of damaged areas of the sub‐floor and installation of new thresholds at entrance ways. 

The Galena Foundation has offered to pay for the above listed improvements. This project will 
proceed using the same policy as previous, with the city paying for construction work and then 
being reimbursed by the Galena Foundation at a later date. 

We recommend the city council approves the quote of $9,600 from White Construction to 
replace the stage floor and complete associated work at Turner Hall.  

Page 22 of 47



 
Ordinance #‐16‐_____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 93, “FIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
FOR BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS” AND CHAPTER 112, “BED AND BREAKFAST 
ESTABLISHMENTS” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 

 
    WHEREAS, on November 14, 2016, the City Council approved an amendment to the text 
of the Galena Zoning Ordinance to permit vacation rentals in certain zoning districts; and  
 
    WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to license vacation rentals in the same 
manner and subject to the same fire, safety, licensing, inspection, and insurance standards as 
bed and breakfast establishments; and  
 
  WHEREAS, Chapter 93 of the Galena Code of Ordinances sets forth the fire and safety 
requirements for bed and breakfast establishments; and  
 
  WHEREAS, Chapter 112 of the Galena Code of Ordinances sets forth the licensing, 
inspection, and insurance requirements for bed and breakfast establishments; and  
 
             WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to amend Chapter 93 and Chapter 112 to make the 
requirements therein applicable to vacation rentals. 
 
             THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, as follows: 
 
  SECTION I: Chapter 93, entitled “FIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR 
BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS”, of the Galena Code of Ordinances shall be amended 
as shown in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
  SECTION II: Chapter 112, entitled “BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS”, of the 
Galena Code of Ordinances shall be amended as shown in Exhibit B, attached hereto and made 
a part hereof. 
 
    SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
    SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on the date of adoption. 
 
             SECTION V:  Passed on this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 2016, in open session. 
                                                  
                ___________________________________ 
                TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 23 of 47



EXHIBIT A 
 

CHAPTER 93: FIRE PREVENTION 
 

FIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR GUEST ACCOMMODATIONS 
BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS 

 
§ 93.40  COMPLIANCE REQUIRED. 
 
   No person shall operate a guest accommodations, house or a bed and breakfast establishment 
(hereinafter called “guest house”), or a guest suite, as defined under the Galena Zoning Ordinance, unless 
the guest accommodation house or guest suite complies with the fire prevention and safety requirements 
set out in this subchapter.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owner of a guest house for which a special 
use permit is in effect as of the effective date hereof shall have until May 1, 1988 to comply with all of 
the requirements of this subchapter, except that such owner shall have until January 1, 1989 to comply 
with the requirements of § 93.42 hereof. 
 
('69 Code, § 7-60) (Ord. 0-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
Cross-reference: 
 
   Guest Accommodations Bed and breakfast establishments, see Chapter 112 
 
§ 93.41  MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS. 
 
   Bed and Breakfasts and Vacation Rentals A guest house shall meet the requirements for one- and two-
family dwellings set out in chapter 22 of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, and the additional requirements 
set forth in this chapter.  A Small Inn guest suite shall meet the requirements for lodging set out it chapter 
20 of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, and the additional requirements set forth in this chapter.  In 
buildings where a guest accommodation suite is not the only use, the other use(s) shall meet the NFPA 
requirements applicable to that use(s). 
 
('69 Code, § 7-61)  (Ord. 0-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)   
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
§ 93.42  SMOKE DETECTORS. 
 

(A) Smoke detectors must be either permanently wired into the guest accommodation house or guest 
suite structure's AC power line, with battery back-up or be otherwise interrelated so as to comprise 
a system that is in the sole judgment of the Chief of the Galena Fire Prevention Bureau of equal or 
greater value.  In the event that a smoke detector system is once approved by the Chief of the Fire 
Prevention Bureau, it shall thereafter be deemed to be a system that complies with the 
requirements of this section.  Multi-station units shall be wired or otherwise constituted so that the 
activation of one detector will activate all of the detectors in the guest accommodation structure 
house or guest suite or will activate other centrally located warning devices in the 
structure.  Smoke detectors shall be installed as follows:  one in each guest room used for sleeping 
purposes; one in each hallway or corridor on each floor; one in each living room or lounge area; 
one in each dining room; one in basement and in each workshop area.  There shall be at least one 

Page 24 of 47



smoke detector on each floor of the guest accommodation structure house or guest suite, but 
excluding unoccupied attics. 
 

(B) The guest accommodation house or guest suite owner shall provide such periodic written reports 
relating to smoke detector testing and maintenance as shall be required by the Fire Prevention 
Bureau. 

 
('69 Code, § 7-62)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
§ 93.43  REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTAIN ROOMS. 
 

(A) All guest rooms located above the second floor or in the basement must have two exits approved 
by the Fire Prevention Bureau.  All vertical openings to any such floor or basement in which a 
guest room is located shall be enclosed with enclosures continuous from floor to floor, which 
enclosures shall be by fire barriers such as walls or partition assemblies.  Any such fire barrier 
shall have a minimum of one hour fire resistance rating. 
 

(B) Passageways used for exiting from any such floor or basement and stairways used for exiting from 
any such floor or basement shall be enclosed by materials that have a minimum of one hour fire 
resistance rating. 

 
(C) Self-closing doors approved by the Fire Prevention Bureau shall be used in any such stairway used    

for exiting from any such floor or basement. 
 
('69 Code, § 7-63)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
§ 93.44  WORKSHOP AREAS. 
 
   Any workshop or other area determined by the Fire Prevention Bureau to contain equipment or 
materials constituting a potential fire hazard shall be enclosed with fire resistant materials. 
 
('69 Code, § 7-64)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)   
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
§ 93.45  INTERIOR FINISHES. 
 
   All interior finishes and floor coverings in the guest accommodation house or guest suite shall meet Life 
Safety Code regulations so as to restrict the spread of fire.  Cellular, foam, plastic and other similar 
materials shall not be used for interior finishes. 
 
('69 Code, § 7-65)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
§ 93.46  EXIT REGULATIONS AND FLOOR PLAN. 
 

Page 25 of 47



(A) All hallways, corridors and stairways used as exits shall be adequately lighted at all 
times.  Emergency lighting shall meet section 5-9 of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code. 
 

(B) A kitchen exit shall not be considered as an approved fire exit in a guest house where breakfast is 
served. 

 
(C) All interior and exterior exits shall open from the inside without the use of a key or special 

knowledge.  All such exits shall be the width of a normal door and shall not be blocked or 
obstructed at any time. 

 
(D) A floor plan of the guest accommodation house or guest suite shall be maintained in each guest 

room, which plan shall show the location of each such guest room and the exit locations to be used 
for such guest room in the event of fire. 

 
('69 Code, § 7-66)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
Penalty, see § 10.99 

Page 26 of 47



EXHIBIT B 
 

CHAPTER 112:  GUEST ACCOMMODATIONS BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS 
 
§ 112.01  DEFINITIONS. 
 
GUEST ACCOMMODATIONS.  A Bed and Breakfast, Small Inn or Vacation Rental as defined in the 
Zoning Code of Ordinances.   BED AND BREAKFAST.   An owner occupied single family dwelling, 
having historic or architectural significance, providing accommodations for a charge to the public with no 
more than five guest rooms for rent that shall afford its guests the opportunity to visit with the owner in a 
home like environment. 
   GUEST SUITE or GUEST APARTMENT.   A building or portion thereof designed or used for 
purposes of accommodating guests, with a group of rooms common to an apartment, though a kitchen 
may or may not be provided.  A guest suite or guest apartment must be supervised within the building or 
on-site. 
   LODGING.   Buildings or groups of buildings under the same management that provide sleeping 
accommodations for a total of 16 or fewer persons on either a permanent or transient basis, with or 
without meals. 
 
(Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
§ 112.02  LICENSE REQUIRED. 
 
   No person shall operate guest accommodations a bed and breakfast establishment (hereinafter called 
"guest house"), a guest suite or a place of lodging as defined above, without first having obtained a 
license for the guest house, guest suite or lodging establishment from the city.  A license for a guest house 
or guest suite may not be issued until the owner has obtained a special use permit for the appropriate land 
use guest house or guest suite from the city.  There shall be a total limit of 20 licenses issued for 
Accommodations, Vacation Rentals / Vacation Rentals – Single Room in residential zoning districts in 
the City. 
 
('69 Code, § 12-108) (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98)  
 
Penalty, see § 110.99 
 
§ 112.03  INSPECTION REPORTS REQUIRED TO OBTAIN LICENSE. 
 
   No license shall be issued until the following inspection reports have been filed with the city: 
 

(A) A fire inspection report from the Fire Chief stating that the guest accommodation house or guest 
suite complies with fire and life safety regulations applicable to guest accommodations houses or 
guest suites, as provided for in Chapter 93 of this code, and that the lodging establishment 
complies with the fire and life safety regulations, as provided for in the NFPA Life Safety Code. 
 

(B) A health inspection report from the Jo Daviess County Health Department stating that the guest 
accommodation house, guest suite or lodging establishment complies with state and county public 
health regulations.  Health inspections shall only be required for guest suites located in the same 
building as a food service business. 

 
(C) A Building Department report from an authorized Galena Building Official stating that the guest 

Page 27 of 47



accommodation house, guest suite or lodging establishment complies with applicable Building 
Code, Electrical Code and Plumbing Code regulations. applicable to guest houses, guest suites or 
lodging.  Guest houses and guest suites shall be subject to the same regulations applicable to 
single-family dwellings.  In buildings where a guest accommodation suite is not the only use, 
separation of the uses shall be in accordance with the most restrictive regulation for the subject 
uses. 

 
('69 Code, § 12-109) (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
§ 112.04  LIABILITY INSURANCE. 
 
   Prior to obtaining a guest accommodations house or lodging license, the owner shall provide the city 
with proof that liability insurance coverage in an amount of not less than $500,000 per occurrence exists 
with respect to such establishment. 
 
('69 Code, § 12-110) (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
§ 112.05  INITIAL LICENSE AND ANNUAL LICENSE AND FEES. 
 

(A) Each applicant for a guest accommodations house, guest suite or lodging license shall pay an 
initial license fee of $150.  Said fee shall be paid prior to the inspections being made pursuant to § 
112.03 hereof.  Said fee shall be non-refundable, even if the guest house, guest suite or lodging 
license is never issued. 

 
(B) Prior to March 1 of each year, each guest accommodations owner house owner, guest suite 

licensee or lodging licensee who wishes to renew their his license for the next fiscal year 
beginning May 1, shall pay an annual license fee of $130.  Upon payment of said fee, reports in 
accordance with § 112.03 hereof shall again be completed and submitted to the city prior to May 1 
of such year.  An annual guest accommodations house, guest suite or lodging license shall be 
issued upon payment of the license fee and upon the filing of said inspection reports. 

 
('69 Code, § 12-111) (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98) 
 
§ 112.06  DISPLAY AND FORM OF LICENSE. 
 
   The guest accommodations house, guest suite or lodging license shall be conspicuously displayed near 
the area within the guest house, guest suite or lodging establishment.  The guest accommodations house, 
guest suite or lodging license shall be in such form and shall include such information as may be 
prescribed from time to time by the city. 
 
('69 Code, § 12-112) (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98)  
 
Penalty, see § 110.99 
 

Page 28 of 47



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 22, 2016 

RE:    Travel Reimbursement Policy. 
 
 
In July, the Governor signed a new law establishing the Local Government Travel Expense Control 
Act.  The law requires non‐home rule units of local government like Galena to place certain 
regulations on travel, meal, and lodging expenses of its employees and officials.  Local 
governments must pass an ordinance or resolution specifically regulating reimbursable expenses.  
I am attaching a summary of the new law from the Government Finance Officers Associations. 
 
I have prepared the attached ordinance to bring us into compliance with the new law.  The 
ordinance clearly defines eligible travel expenses and the process for submitting those expenses 
for reimbursement.  We have followed a travel reimbursement policy for many years that is very 
similar to the proposed policy.  As with our current policy, all travel expenses would be presented 
to the city council for approval as warrants under the new policy. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 
 

   

 

Page 29 of 47



Page 30 of 47



Page 31 of 47



 

1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 16‐______ 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH  

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRAVEL EXPENSE CONTROL ACT  
(PUBLIC ACT 099‐0604) 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Galena is a non‐home rule unit of local government; and 

WHEREAS, Public Act 099‐0604 established the Local Government Travel Expense 

Control Act, which requires all non‐home rule units of local government to adopt by resolution 

or ordinance a policy governing reimbursement of all travel, meal, and lodging expenses of 

officers and employees; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Galena find it to be in the best interest of the 

City to adopt such a policy.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, as follows:  

SECTION 1:  The above recitals are incorporated into and made part of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2:  The  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Galena  repeals  2.13  of  the  Employee 

Handbook. 

SECTION 3:  The  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Galena  adopts  the  “Reimbursement  of 

Travel, Meal and Lodging Expenses Policy” attached as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 4:  All ordinances, resolutions, and regulations in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.   

SECTION 5:  This Ordinance is effective beginning January 1, 2017. 

Page 32 of 47



 

2 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent 

Abstain 

Adopted this ____ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 

______________________________ 
Terry Renner, Mayor 

 

______________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk  

 

Page 33 of 47



 

3 

 

Exhibit A 

1.  Policy Governing Reimbursement of Employee and Officer Travel, Meal and Lodging 
Expenses 

 
A. Purpose. 

The City Council of the City of Galena will reimburse employee and officer travel, 

meal, and lodging expenses incurred in connection with pre‐approved travel, meal, and 

lodging expenses incurred on behalf of the City.   Employees and officers are expected 

to exercise the same care in incurring expenses for official business as a prudent person 

would in spending personal funds.   

B.  Definitions.  

"Entertainment" includes, but is not limited to, shows, amusements, theaters, 

circuses, sporting events, or any other place of public or private entertainment or 

amusement, unless ancillary to the purpose of the program or event.  

  "Travel" means any expenditure directly incident to official travel by employees 

and officers of the City or by wards or charges of the City involving reimbursement to 

travelers or direct payment to private agencies providing transportation or related 

services. 

C.  Authorized Types of Official Business. 

Travel, meal and lodging expenses shall be reimbursed for employees and 

officers of City only for purposes of official business conducted on behalf of the City, 

which includes but is not limited to off‐site or out‐of‐town meetings related to official 

Page 34 of 47



 

4 

 

business and pre‐approved seminars, conferences and other educational events related 

to the employee’s or officer’s official duties.  If you are unsure whether an expense is 

reimbursable, please contact the City Administrator to discuss the proposed travel. 

Employees and officers may be authorized to attend professional conferences 

and meetings on work related topics. Employees shall submit requests for conference or 

meeting attendance to the City Administrator for approval.  Approval for conferences is 

subject to budgetary constraints and the City Administrator’s discretion.  The City 

Administrator may pre‐approve expenses for conferences and travel by including them 

in the annual budget. 

D.  Categories of Expenses.    

1. Airfare – Air travel must be pre‐approved by the City Administrator.  Travelers are 
expected to obtain the lowest available airfare that reasonably meets business 
travel needs.  Travelers are encouraged to book flights at least thirty (30) days in 
advance to avoid premium airfare pricing.  Only coach or economy tickets will be 
paid or reimbursed.  The traveler will pay for the difference between higher priced 
tickets and coach or economy tickets with his or her personal funds. 

2. Personal Automobiles –Travelers shall use City vehicles for travel unless the use of a 
personal vehicle is pre‐approved by the City Administrator.  Mileage reimbursement 
for personal vehicles will be based on mileage from the work location office to the 
off‐site location of the official business, not from the employee’s or officer’s 
residence.  When attending a training event or other off‐site official business directly 
from an employee’s or officer’s residence, no reimbursement will be made if the 
distance is less than the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  If the 
distance is higher than the employee’s or officer’s normal commute, reimbursement 
will be paid based on the differential of the commute less the mileage of a normal 
commute to the workplace.  An employee or officer will be reimbursed at the 
prevailing IRS mileage rate.  The traveler will only be reimbursed up to the price of a 
coach airfare ticket if they drive to a location for which airfare would have been less 
expensive. 

Page 35 of 47



 

5 

 

3. Automobile Rentals – Travelers will be reimbursed for the cost of renting an 
automobile including gasoline expense only as provided in this section.  Travelers 
using rental cars to conduct official business are required to purchase insurance 
through the rental agency.  Car rental insurance will cover the vehicle during 
personal use, e.g., using the vehicle after the conference has ended.  Compact or 
mid– size cars are required for two or fewer employees or officers traveling together 
and a full– size vehicle may be used for three or more travelers.  The traveler must 
refuel the vehicle before returning it to the rental company. 

4. Public Transportation – In the case of local training or official business where an 
employee or officer chooses to use public transportation, reimbursement for use of 
public transportation shall be the cost of the public transportation plus any mileage 
in accordance with this policy. 

5. Other Transportation – The traveler should utilize hotel shuttle service or other 
shuttle services, if available.  If none are offered, the use of the most economic 
transportation is encouraged.   

6. Hotel/Motel Accommodations – The traveler will be reimbursed for a standard 
single‐room at locations convenient to the business activity.  Hotel/motel 
accommodations are to be reserved in advance and secured at a moderate or 
conference rate.  Reimbursement for lodging shall be limited to the number of 
nights required to conduct the assigned City business.  If a conference, for example, 
opens on a Sunday evening and closes Thursday noon, reimbursement for Sunday 
through Wednesday night would be allowed.  In the event of a change in plans or a 
cancellation, the traveler must cancel the hotel/motel reservation so as not to incur 
cancellation charges.  Cancellation charges will not be reimbursed by the City unless 
approved by a vote of the City Council.  

7. Meals—Meal expenses and reimbursements are limited to the current U.S. General 
Services Administration (GSA) per diem rate for the location of travel at the time the 
expense is incurred.  Receipts shall be submitted to substantiate all expenses within 
14 days after expenses are incurred.  Any amount of the per diem allowance which 
was not spent by the traveler shall be returned to the City at the time receipts are 
submitted.   Meals provided by a conference or seminar should be deducted from 
the per diem allowance.  Partial reimbursement may be made for departure and 
return days based on time.  Meals during in‐state travel that are not part of an 
overnight stay will be reimbursed at the actual cost not to exceed the GSA meal 
rate.  If not already applied by the establishment, gratuity must be calculated on the 
amount of the bill before sales tax.  The maximum reimbursement for gratuities is 
20%.  

Page 36 of 47



 

6 

 

8. Vacation in Conjunction with Business Travel – In cases where vacation time is 
added to a business trip, any cost variance in airfare, car rental, lodging and/or any 
other expenses must be clearly identified on the Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense 
Report form and paid by the traveler. 

9. Accompanied Travel – Family members may accompany the traveler when traveling 
on official City business. However, no expenses attributable to any family member 
will be reimbursable. All expenses will be calculated as if the traveler were traveling 
alone, using the minimum costs to the City for lodging, meals, and transportation.  

10. Parking – Parking fees at a hotel/motel or incidental to other travel will be 
reimbursed only with a receipt. 

11. Entertainment Expenses ‐ No employee or officer of the City shall be reimbursed for 
any entertainment expense, unless ancillary to the purpose of the program, event or 
other official business.   

E.  Approval of Expenses. 

1. Expenses for Members of the City Council, Officials or Employees.  Travel, meal, 
and lodging expenses to be reimbursed to any member of the City Council or any 
official or employee must be approved by roll‐call vote at an open meeting of the 
City Council as part of the warrant approval process.  Travel, meal and lodging 
expenses which are included in the annual budget and which are paid in 
advanced as a per diem allowance are also subject to this requirement at the 
next available council meeting.  Documentation of expenses must be provided in 
accordance with Sections C, D and F of this policy.  Any excess from the per diem 
allowance must be repaid as provided in this policy. 

2. Other Expenses. All other expenses that do not fall within paragraphs E.1 and E.2 
are subject to the City Council’s approval. 

F.  Documentation of Expenses. 

Before an expense for travel, meals, or lodging may be approved under Section E 

of this Policy, the following minimum documentation must first be submitted, in writing, 

to the City Clerk on a Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Reimbursement Form:   

Page 37 of 47



 

7 

 

(1)  an estimate of the cost of travel, meals, or lodging if expenses have not 

been incurred or a receipt of the cost of the travel, meals, or lodging if 

the expenses have already been incurred;   

(2)  the name of the individual who received or is requesting the travel, meal, 

or lodging expense;  

(3)  the job title or office of the individual who received or is requesting the 

travel, meal, or lodging expense; and   

(4)  the date or dates and nature of the official business for which the travel, 

meal, or lodging expense was or will be expended.   

All documents and information submitted under this Section are public records 

subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act.  

G.  Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Reimbursement Form. 

The City hereby adopts as its official standardized form for the submission of 

travel, meal, and lodging expenses the Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense 

Reimbursement Form attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment 1. 

H.   Maximum Reimbursement. 

  The maximum total amount the City will reimburse a traveler for a single trip is 

$2,000.00.  The maximum amount may be increased because of emergency or other 

extraordinary circumstances when approved by the City Council at a roll call vote at a 

meeting. 

[END] 

Page 38 of 47



Attachment 1 of Policy Governing Reimbursement of Employee and Officer Travel, Meal and Lodging  Expenses

Travel, Meal and Lodging Expense Reimbursement Form

Name Date Submitted
Job Title Expense 

Department

Per Mile Reimbursement $0.55 

Total Reimbursement Due $0.00

Date Description of Expense Airfare Lodging
Ground Transportation (Gas, 

Rental Car, Taxi)
Meals & Tips

Conferences, 

Seminars, Training

Mileage (Personal 

Car Only)
Mileage Reimbursement Miscellaneous  U.S. $

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

Total Mileage Reimbursement: $0.00 Total Reimbursement: $0.00

Authorized By (Signature)

Submitted By (Signature)

See Reverse Page for Detailed Travel Reimbursement Schedule Rules

All Receipts Must be Attached

Page 39 of 47



Attachment 1 of Policy Governing Reimbursement of Employee and Officer Travel, Meal and Lodging  Expenses

Travel Reimbursement Schedule

Airfare

Lodging

Ground Transportation: 

Personal Automobiles

Ground Transportation: 

Automobile Rentals

Ground Transportation: 

Public Transportation

Meals and Tips

Conferences and Seminars

Mileage  An employee or officer will be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS mileage rate. 

Miscellaneous 

The actual cost of registration, including any ancillary and optional sessions or events. 

Family members may accompany the traveler when traveling on official City business. However, no expenses attributable to any family member will be reimbursable. All expenses will be calculated as if 

the traveler were traveling alone, using the minimum costs to the City for lodging, meals, and transportation.  Parking fees at a hotel/motel or incidental to other travel will be reimbursed only with a 

receipt.  No employee or officer of the City shall be reimbursed for any entertainment expense, unless ancillary to the purpose of the program, event or other official business.  

Travelers shall use City vehicles for travel unless the use of a personal vehicle is pre‐approved by the City Administrator.  Mileage reimbursement for personal vehicles will be based on mileage from the 

work location office to the off‐site location of the official business, not from the employee’s or officer’s residence.  When attending a training event or other off‐site official business directly from an 

employee’s or officer’s residence, no reimbursement will be made if the distance is less than the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  If the distance is higher than the employee’s or officer’s 

normal commute, reimbursement will be paid based on the differential of the commute less the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  An employee or officer will be reimbursed at the 

prevailing IRS mileage rate.  The traveler will only be reimbursed up to the price of a coach airfare ticket if they drive to a location for which airfare would have been less expensive.   

The traveler will be reimbursed for a standard single‐room at locations convenient to the business activity.  Hotel/motel accommodations are to be reserved in advance and secured at a moderate or 

conference rate.  Reimbursement for lodging shall be limited to the number of nights required to conduct the assigned City business.  If a conference, for example, opens on a Sunday evening and closes 

Thursday noon, reimbursement for Sunday through Wednesday night would be allowed.  In the event of a change in plans or a cancellation, the traveler must cancel the hotel/motel reservation so as 

not to incur cancellation charges.  Cancellation charges will not be reimbursed by the City unless approved by a vote of the City Council.   

Travelers will be reimbursed for the cost of renting an automobile including gasoline expense only as provided in this section.  Travelers using rental cars to conduct official business are required to 

purchase insurance through the rental agency.  Car rental insurance will cover the vehicle during personal use, e.g., using the vehicle after the conference has ended.  Compact or mid– size cars are 

required for two or fewer employees or officers traveling together and a full– size vehicle may be used for three or more travelers.  The traveler must refuel the vehicle before returning it to the rental 

company.

The traveler should utilize hotel shuttle service or other shuttle services, if available.  If none are offered, the use of the most economic transportation is encouraged.  In the case of local training or 

official business where an employee or officer chooses to use public transportation, reimbursement for use of public transportation shall be the cost of the public transportation plus any mileage in 

accordance with this policy.

Meal expenses and reimbursements are limited to the current U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) per diem rate for the location of travel at the time the expense is incurred.  Receipts shall be 

submitted to substantiate all expenses within 14 days after expenses are incurred.  Any amount of the per diem allowance which was not spent by the traveler shall be returned to the City at the time 

receipts are submitted.   Meals provided by a conference or seminar should be deducted from the per diem allowance.  Partial reimbursement may be made for departure and return days based on 

time.  Meals during in‐state travel that are not part of an overnight stay will be reimbursed at the actual cost not to exceed the GSA meal rate.  If not already applied by the establishment, gratuity must 

be calculated on the amount of the bill before sales tax.  The maximum reimbursement for gratuities is 20%. 

Air travel must be pre‐approved by the City Administrator.  Travelers are expected to obtain the lowest available airfare that reasonably meets business travel needs.  Travelers are encouraged to book 

flights at least thirty (30) days in advance to avoid premium airfare pricing.  Only coach or economy tickets will be paid or reimbursed.  The traveler will pay for the difference between higher priced 

tickets and coach or economy tickets with his or her personal funds.

Page 40 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ALL TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS (119313)
SIN009802 3 Adjustmen NEW SPEED SIGN 09/20/2016 1,000.00- 01.21.918.00
SIN009802 4 Adjustmen NEW SPEED SIGN 09/20/2016 5,205.00- 01.21.830.04

SIN009802/R 1 Invoice NEW SPEED SIGN 09/20/2016 5,205.00 01.21.830.04
SIN009802/R 2 Invoice NEW SPEED SIGN 09/20/2016 1,000.00 01.21.918.00

SO-010492 2 Adjustmen TRAFFIC DATE COLLECT 10/01/2016 500.00- 01.21.914.00

Total ALL TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS (119313): 500.00-

AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005)
EMCI-00006 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 11/17/2016 26,441.15 52.43.515.01
EMCI-00006 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 11/17/2016 26,441.16 51.42.515.00

Total AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005): 52,882.31

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
111516 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 11/15/2016 3.43 22.22.552.00
111516 2 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 11/15/2016 8.30 01.21.552.00
111516 3 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  11/15/2016 65.77 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 77.50

B & P ROOFING (120029)
1245 1 Invoice GAZEBO ROOF IMPROV 11/06/2016 3,080.00 17.52.820.06

Total B & P ROOFING (120029): 3,080.00

BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788)
249066 1 Invoice FLAG POLE PUBLIC WOR 11/05/2016 300.00 01.41.614.04

Total BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788): 300.00

C & C EMBROIDERY, INC. (630)
62 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/MARY DAVIS 11/08/2016 126.32 01.21.471.15

Total C & C EMBROIDERY, INC. (630): 126.32

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
111516 1 Invoice SOUND SYSTEM MAINTE 11/15/2016 74.70 01.13.511.01
111516 2 Invoice DIAPER STATION LINER 11/15/2016 47.12 01.13.511.06
111516 3 Invoice DIAPER STATION LINER 11/15/2016 47.12 01.13.511.08
111516 4 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 11/15/2016 21.24 01.16.563.00
111516 5 Invoice SYMPATHY FLOWERS 11/15/2016 54.15 01.11.929.01
111516 6 Invoice FLAG POLE 11/15/2016 1,236.40 01.41.929.00
111516 7 Invoice PAINT & SUPPLIES 11/15/2016 1,180.00 17.52.652.00
111516 8 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 11/15/2016 119.00 51.42.929.00
111516 9 Invoice VFW PLAQUE 11/15/2016 139.95 01.41.652.04

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 2,919.68

CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL (886)
112116 1 Invoice NOTARY BOND/MARY 11/21/2016 30.00 01.21.651.00

Page 41 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL (886): 30.00

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
104906 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 11/10/2016 186.77 01.41.514.06
104907 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 11/10/2016 60.82 01.41.514.06

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 247.59

CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY (224)
S502806698 1 Invoice LITE FIXTURES 11/05/2016 194.16 22.22.611.00

Total CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY (224): 194.16

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
1619619 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 11/15/2016 165.45 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 165.45

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
112816 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 11/28/2016 225.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 225.00

ELECTRONIC SECURITY SOLUTIONS (120139)
JS11092016 1 Invoice pay AND DISPLAY MACHI 11/09/2016 12,178.80 53.48.830.01

Total ELECTRONIC SECURITY SOLUTIONS (120139): 12,178.80

GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20)
48337 1 Invoice CHAMBER DUES 11/14/2016 95.00 01.11.561.00

Total GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20): 95.00

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
65155 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 REPAIRS 10/10/2016 26.12 01.21.513.06
65199 1 Invoice SQUAD 5 REPAIRS 10/14/2016 245.59 01.21.513.06
65261 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 REPAIRS 10/20/2016 509.89 01.21.513.06
65289 1 Invoice SQUAD 3 MAINTENANCE 10/24/2016 114.66 01.21.513.06
65316 1 Invoice SQUAD 4 MAINTENANCE 10/26/2016 31.61 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 927.87

GALENA DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOC (118941)
111516 1 Invoice DONATION LUMINARIA 11/15/2016 100.00 01.11.929.01

Total GALENA DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOC (118941): 100.00

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
78824 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 10/01/2016 95.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 95.00

Page 42 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

H. B. WILKINSON (31)
162295 1 Invoice TITLE SEARCH/BULK TA 09/27/2016 100.00 01.11.929.02

Total H. B. WILKINSON (31): 100.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
112816 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 11/28/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
112816 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  11/28/2016 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
111516 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  11/15/2016 4,361.00 01.218.0
111516 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  11/15/2016 396.00 01.218.0
111516 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 11/15/2016 33,144.52 01.13.451.00
111516 4 Invoice WESTEMEIER/INSURAN 11/15/2016 1,014.15 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 38,915.67

HIGLEY (120328)
61654 1 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 11/14/2016 33.25 58.54.654.01

Total HIGLEY (120328): 33.25

ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1714339 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 11/14/2016 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

IML RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (432)
111616 1 Invoice MIN/MAX CONTRIBUTION 11/16/2016 226,683.27 14.14.591.06

Total IML RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (432): 226,683.27

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1611771 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 11/14/2016 1,108.81 20.25.652.02

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 1,108.81

JACKSON CONCRETE/EXCAVATION CO (489)
111316 1 Invoice SIDEWALK REPAIRS 11/13/2016 16,859.50 17.52.820.06
111716 1 Invoice BRIDGE REPAIR 11/17/2016 1,510.00 01.41.614.05

Total JACKSON CONCRETE/EXCAVATION CO (489): 18,369.50

JDWI (235)
41320 1 Invoice SENIOR TRANSPORTATI 10/31/2016 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
111516 1 Invoice ELECTRIC/STREET LIGH 11/15/2016 522.78 15.41.572.00
111516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 11/15/2016 329.27 01.41.571.01
111516 3 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 11/15/2016 165.76 17.52.571.01

Page 43 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

111516 4 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 11/15/2016 78.05 22.22.576.01
111516 5 Invoice POOL/ELECTRIC 11/15/2016 186.88 59.55.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,282.74

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
102416 1 Invoice LICENSE RENEWAL 10/24/2016 50.00 59.55.929.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 50.00

JODAVIESS CTY CIRCUIT CLERK (119752)
090216 2 Adjustmen RECORDING FEES 09/02/2016 85.00- 01.14.553.00
100416 2 Adjustmen RECORDING FEES 10/04/2016 52.00- 01.14.553.00

Total JODAVIESS CTY CIRCUIT CLERK (119752): 137.00-

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
111516 1 Invoice clothing 11/15/2016 313.96 01.41.471.09
111516 2 Invoice EQUIP MAINTENANCE 11/15/2016 303.61 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 617.57

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9304505247 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 11/10/2016 145.67 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 145.67

MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120)
111516 1 Invoice PHYSICALS 11/15/2016 386.75 22.22.929.00

Total MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120): 386.75

MENARDS (280)
19059 1 Invoice FLAG POLE 11/15/2016 89.97 01.41.652.00

Total MENARDS (280): 89.97

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
110116 1 Invoice LIFE & DENTAL INSURAN 11/01/2016 306.52 01.13.452.00

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 306.52

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
2629693020 1 Invoice STARCOM RADIO CHAR 11/01/2016 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF IL (143)
111516 1 Invoice DUES 11/15/2016 55.00 01.14.561.00

Total MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF IL (143): 55.00

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
92494 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 11/15/2016 45.60 01.41.652.00

Page 44 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 45.60

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
111516 1 Invoice FUEL 11/15/2016 15.73 01.41.655.00
111516 2 Invoice MISC. EQUIPMENT 11/15/2016 4.99 01.41.613.12

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 20.72

NELSON CARLSON MECH. CONTRACT. (119111)
8671 1 Invoice BACKFLOW INSPECTION 10/31/2016 5,146.00 01.46.546.03

Total NELSON CARLSON MECH. CONTRACT. (119111): 5,146.00

PEPPLE, CINDY (106)
112116 1 Invoice TRAVEL EXPENSE 11/21/2016 818.94 01.13.562.00

Total PEPPLE, CINDY (106): 818.94

PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990)
1744 1 Invoice DEPOT GROUNDS MAIN 10/31/2016 200.00 01.13.511.03

Total PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990): 200.00

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
112116 1 Invoice POSTAGE 11/21/2016 17.24 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 17.24

SECRETARY OF STATE (515)
111516 1 Invoice NOTARY PUBLIC 11/15/2016 10.00 01.21.651.00
111516 2 Invoice NOTARY PUBLIC 11/15/2016 10.00 01.21.651.00

Total SECRETARY OF STATE (515): 20.00

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
466530 1 Invoice VEHICLE DECALS 11/10/2016 118.43 51.42.831.01

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 118.43

SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659)
0277792 1 Invoice EVIDENCE SUPPLIES 11/09/2016 101.58 01.21.652.03

Total SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659): 101.58

STETSON BUILDING PRODUCTS (449)
1452641-00 1 Invoice SUPPLIES FOR FLAG PO 11/09/2016 27.50 01.41.652.00

Total STETSON BUILDING PRODUCTS (449): 27.50

THOMPSON TRUCK  & TRAILER (120307)
X201048054 1 Invoice FUEL 11/15/2016 29.97 01.41.655.00

Page 45 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total THOMPSON TRUCK  & TRAILER (120307): 29.97

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
6480 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY RENTAL 11/17/2016 135.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 135.00

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
7150 1 Invoice SYMPATHY FLOWERS 11/17/2016 40.00 01.21.549.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 40.00

VAN METER INC. (141)
S9098355 1 Invoice LED LIGHTING 09/06/2016 53.50- 01.41.614.06
S9312718 1 Invoice LEDS 08/08/2016 80.90 01.41.614.04
S9391724 1 Invoice LED BULB CHANGE OVE 08/22/2016 642.00 17.52.517.02
S9529803 1 Invoice TURNER HALL LIGHTS 11/16/2016 221.07 58.54.654.01

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 890.47

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
111516 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 11/15/2016 55.57 01.13.651.02
111516 2 Invoice SOUND BAR FOR CLASS 11/15/2016 78.00 01.21.563.00
111516 3 Invoice SUPPLIES 11/15/2016 91.84 01.41.652.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 225.41

WATCHGUARD VIDEO (119323)
QUO-36111- 1 Invoice EXTENDED WARRANT F 11/13/2016 4,000.00 01.21.914.00

Total WATCHGUARD VIDEO (119323): 4,000.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D016658 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/28/2016 201.08 01.13.654.00
D016660 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/28/2016 417.34 01.13.654.00
D017074 1 Invoice SUPPLIES/RESTROOM 10/28/2016 348.90 01.13.511.06
D017438 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 11/04/2016 28.41 01.13.654.00
D017808 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 11/11/2016 396.94 01.21.654.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 1,392.67

WELU PAINTING (120327)
0000159 1 Invoice PAINTING OF FRONT PO 10/31/2016 1,800.00 01.21.511.00

Total WELU PAINTING (120327): 1,800.00

WELU PRINTING CO. (770)
0000159 2 Adjustmen PAINTING OF FRONT PO 10/31/2016 1,800.00- 01.21.511.00

Total WELU PRINTING CO. (770): 1,800.00-

WEX BANK (119104)
111516 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 11/15/2016 1,223.60 01.41.655.00

Page 46 of 47



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 11/15/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 22, 2016  02:27PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

111516 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 11/15/2016 174.61 17.52.655.03
111516 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 11/15/2016 1,070.44 01.21.655.00
111516 4 Invoice FIRE-GAS 11/15/2016 232.33 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,700.98

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
111516 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 11/15/2016 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
8691 1 Invoice LAWN CARE/FORECLOS 11/05/2016 50.00 51.42.929.00

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 50.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
35627 1 Invoice GEAR ST. DESIGN 11/17/2016 2,260.81 41.61.860.05

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 2,260.81

WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914)
23034 1 Invoice DESIGN 11/17/2016 12,451.09 41.61.860.07

Total WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914): 12,451.09

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0162498 1 Invoice SWEEPER 11/10/2016 128.25 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 128.25

Grand Totals: 393,863.66

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3605171
Vendor number hash - split: 6000111
Total number of invoices: 77
Total number of transactions: 106

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 393,863.66 393,863.66

Grand Totals: 393,863.66 393,863.66

Page 47 of 47


	00.00 Agenda 11.28.16xx
	00.0477 Tax Levy Ordinance
	01.0478 Minutes cc111416
	02.0481 Coatsworth Sale
	03.0482 Well 6 Upgrade
	04.0483 Turner Hall Stage
	05.0484 Vacation Rental Licensing
	vacation rentals 2016
	vacation rentals 2016a
	vacation rentals 2016b

	08.0487 Travel Policy Ordinance
	08.0487 Travel Policy Ordinance
	112816b
	Travel Expense Reporting Legislation Si..
	Travel Policy Ordinance 2017
	Travel Expense Form

	Travel Expense Form

	09.0489 Warrants 11.28.16



